
Page 1 of 3 

MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

DISTRICT OFFICE  
BOARD ROOM 

14451 CEDARWOOD STREET 
WESTMINSTER, CA 92683 

Tuesday, August 20, 2024 
5:30 P.M. 

OUR MISSION STATEMENT  
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES OF THE MIDWAY CITY SANITARY 

DISTRICT WORK DILIGENTLY TO PROVIDE SEWER AND SOLID WASTE SERVICES 
TO THE RESIDENTS OF THE DISTRICT. OUR TOP PRIORITY IS TO ACCOMPLISH 
THIS IN AN ETHICAL, EFFICIENT, AND COST-EFFECTIVE MANNER THAT WILL 

PROTECT THE HEALTH AND SAFETY OF THOSE WE SERVE.  

In accordance with the requirements of California Government Code Section 54954.2, this Agenda is 
posted not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting date and time above.  All written materials relating to 
each agenda item are available for public inspection in the office of the Board Secretary. 

In the event any matter not listed on this agenda is proposed to be submitted to the Board for discussion 
and/or action, it will be done in compliance with Section 54954.2, or as set forth on a Supplemental 
Agenda posted not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting. 

Please Note:  The District complies with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). 
Anyone needing special assistance please contact the District’s Secretary at (714) 893-3553, at least one 
business day prior to the meeting so that we may accommodate you. 

1. CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION

2. ROLL CALL AND DECLARATION OF QUORUM

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS
All persons wishing to address the Board on specific Agenda items or matters of general interest
should do so at this time.  As determined by the President, speakers may be deferred until the specific 
item is taken for discussion and remarks may be limited to three (3) minutes.

4. PRESENTATIONS
None.

5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES

A. Approve Minutes of the Regular Board of Directors Meeting on August 6, 2024



    Board of Directors  Regular Meeting Agenda Tuesday, August 20, 2024     

Page 2 of 3 

6. REPORTS

The President, General Manager, Legal Counsel, and other staff present verbal reports on
miscellaneous matters of general interest to the Directors. These reports are for information only and
require no action by the Directors.

A. Report of President
B. Report of General Manager
C. Report of Director of Services & Program Development
D. Report of Radio Outreach with VietLink on August 8, 2024
E. Report of Radio Outreach with Me Vietnam on August 9, 2024
F. Report of Clean-up Event at Bowling Green Park on August 10, 2024

7. CONSENT CALENDAR

All matters listed on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be acted upon at the same
time unless separate discussion and/or action is requested by a Board Member, the public, or staff.

A. Receive and File the Register of Demands in the Amount of $786,759.04
B. Approve and File the Treasurer’s Investment Report for July 2024
C. Approve a $1,000 Economic Suggestion Award to Lead Fleet Maintenance Mechanic, Raul

Martinez for Making an Economic Suggestion that Reduced the Cost and Increased Operational
Efficiency for the Replacement of the Firewall Protection in the Solid Waste Department’s Trucks, 
Saving the District $26,000

D. Receive and File the Engineer Report for July 2024
E. Approve the Purchase of One (1) New 2024 Electric Pickup Truck

8. OLD BUSINESS

None.

9. NEW BUSINESS

A. Consider Sponsorship of the City of Westminster’s Fall Festival

B. Discussion of Exploring Opportunities for the Purchase of Additional Real Property to Meet
the District’s Future Needs

10. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

A. Independent Special Districts of Orange County (ISDOC) 2024 Election Timeline

11. BOARD CONCERNS AND COMMENTS

12. GM/STAFF CONCERNS AND COMMENTS

13. GENERAL COUNSEL CONCERNS AND COMMENTS



                Board of Directors                            Regular Meeting Agenda Tuesday, August 20, 2024      
           

Page 3 of 3 

14. CLOSED SESSION ITEMS  
 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS (Government Code Section 54957.6)   
Title: Agency Designated Representatives: GM Robert Housley, Labor Counsel Joseph Larsen  
Employee Organization: American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees, 
LOCAL 1734-01 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

15. ADJOURNMENT TO TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 3, 2024                                          

CLOSED SESSION: During the course of conducting the business set forth on this agenda as a regular meeting 
of the Board, the Chair may convene the Board in closed session to consider matters of pending real estate 
negotiations, pending or potential litigation, or personnel matters, pursuant to Government Code Sections 
54956.8, 54956.9, 54957 or 54957.6, as noted. 
 
Reports relating to (a) purchase and sale of property; (b) matters of pending or potential litigation; (c) employment 
actions or negotiations with employee representatives; or which are exempt from public disclosure under the 
California Public Records Act, may be reviewed by the Board during a permitted closed session and are not 
available for public inspection. At such time as the Board takes final action on any of these subjects, the minutes 
will reflect all required disclosures of information. 
 



Page 1 of 5 

 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MIDWAY CITY 

SANITARY DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 
14451 CEDARWOOD STREET 

WESTMINSTER, CA  92683 
 

August 6, 2024 
 

  
CALL TO ORDER 
 
President M. Nguyen called the Regular Meeting of the Governing Board of the Midway City Sanitary 
District to order at 5:32 p.m., on Tuesday, August 6, 2024 at 14451 Cedarwood Street, Westminster, 
California. 
 
ROLL CALL 
PRESENT:        Mark Nguyen  
     Tyler Diep           
     Sergio Contreras                     
     Andrew Nguyen (arrived @ 5:34 P.M.)                     
     Chi Charlie Nguyen   
 
ABSENT:    None 
                   
STAFF PRESENT:    Robert Housley, General Manager 
     Ashley Davies, Dir. of Servs. & Program Development 
     Milo Ebrahimi, District Engineer, P.E 
     Cynthia Olsder, Board Secretary 
        
OTHERS PRESENT:  James H. Eggart, General Counsel, Woodruff & Smart 
     Joseph Larsen, Labor Counsel, Rutan & Tucker  
     Terry Rains, Resident of Westminster  
    
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION 
Director S. Contreras led the Pledge of Allegiance.  Director T. Diep conducted the Invocation. 
 
ROLL CALL AND DECLARATION OF QUORUM 
Clerk of the Board announced a quorum.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS  
T. Rains addressed the Board and voiced her concerns about the lack of diversity in Little Saigon politics.” 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
None 
 
 
 



 
 
 
Board of Directors                         Minutes of Regular Meeting                       Tuesday, August 6, 2024 
 

    Page 2 of 5 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. Approve Minutes of the Regular Board of Directors Meeting on July 16, 2024      
      

A motion was made by Director T. Diep, seconded by Director A. Nguyen, to approve the 
minutes of the regular meeting on July 16, 2024. The motion was approved by the following 5-
0 vote: 
 
AYES:  A. Nguyen, M. Nguyen, S. Contreras, C. Nguyen, and T. Diep 
NAYS: None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 

 
REPORTS 
 
Report of President – None 

 
Report of the General Manager  
GM R. Housley provided updates on events occurring at the District.   

 
Report of the Director of Services & Program Development 
Director of Services & Program Development A. Davies reported on the outreach activities she   will be 
participating in this coming week.  She also shared a video of the compost and shredding   event that would 
soon be aired.  

 
Report of City of Westminster Safety Day on July 17, 2024 
President M. Nguyen and Director A. Nguyen attended the event and said it was well attended. 

 
Report of Compost and Shredding Event on July 20, 2024 
All the Directors attended and reported that the event was just as well attended and successful as the 
previous year. The Directors expressed their gratitude to Congresswoman Michelle Steele for her support 
and thanked staff for their participation. 

 
Report of Outreach Committee Meeting on July 24, 2024 
Director T. Diep and Director C. Nguyen reported that the committee met to go over the details for  the 
85th Anniversary Event. They also discussed the dates and locations of the 2025 clean-up events.  

 
Report of OC San Board of Directors Meeting on July 24, 2024 
Director A. Nguyen attended the meeting and reported that the annual report card grading California 
beaches along the coast is out and once again Orange County beaches topped the charts.  Nine beaches are 
in Orange County and three of those are within OC San’s service area. OC San extensive Ocean 
Monitoring Program and Source Control efforts play a critical role in protecting our ocean waters.  

 
Report of ISDOC Quarterly Luncheon on July 25, 2024 
Director C. Nguyen, Director S. Contreras, and Director A. Nguyen attended the meeting and reported 
that it was an excellent chance to network and gain knowledge about different districts.  

 



 
 
 
Board of Directors                         Minutes of Regular Meeting                       Tuesday, August 6, 2024 
 

    Page 3 of 5 
 

Report of Radio Outreach with VNCR on July 26, 2024 
Director C. Nguyen and Director A. Nguyen attended the recording to discuss SB 1383, the District 
services and upcoming events.  

 
Report of District Employee Luncheon on July 31, 2024 
All of the Directors attended and thanked staff for their hard work. The Directors recognized fleet 
maintenance mechanic, Carlos Gomez, and awarded him for going ten years without an accident or injury.  
 
CONSENT CALENDAR  
  

A.  Receive and File the Register of Demands in the Amount of $393,809.86  
 

B. Approve the July 24, 2024 Outreach Committee Recommendations 
 

C.  Recognition and Approval of a 10-year Accident and Injury Free Award for Fleet Maintenance   
 Mechanic, Carlos Gomez, in the Amount of $300 
 

D. Acceptance of Improvements Completed Pursuant to the Midway City Sanitary District Addition 
and Remodel, Project No. 202041, and Authorization for the Recording of a Notice of Completion  
 

E. Acceptance of Improvements Completed Pursuant to Projects for Emergency Sewer Main Repairs 
and Emergency CIPP Lining in Webber Place and Pembrook Lane and Authorization for the 
Recording of a Notice of Completion    
 
A motion was made by Director C. Nguyen, seconded by Director S. Contreras, to approve the 
Consent Calendar. The motion was approved by the following 5-0 vote: 
 
AYES:  A. Nguyen, M. Nguyen, S. Contreras, C. Nguyen, and T. Diep 
NAYS:  None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT: None 

 
8.   OLD BUSINESS - None 
 
9.   NEW BUSINESS 
  

A. RESOLUTION 2024-18 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MIDWAY CITY SANITARY 
DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY, ADOPTING A CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 
WHICH SUPERCEDES ALL PRIOR CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODES AND 
AMENDMENTS PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED   
                        
A staff report and recommendations were provided to and considered by the Board.  A motion 
was made by Director T. Diep, seconded by Director S. Contreras, to adopt Resolution No. 
2024-18 as presented at the meeting.  The motion was approved by the following 5-0 roll call 
vote: 



 
 
 
Board of Directors                         Minutes of Regular Meeting                       Tuesday, August 6, 2024 
 

    Page 4 of 5 
 

AYES:  A. Nguyen, M. Nguyen, T. Diep, S. Contreras, and C. Nguyen 
NAYS:  None 
ABSTAIN: None  
ABSENT:  None 

 
B. RESOLUTION 2024-19  

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MIDWAY CITY SANITARY 
DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, ESTABLISHING A POLICY FOR 
RESPONDING TO PUBLIC RECORDS ACT REQUESTS 
 
A staff report and recommendations were provided to and considered by the Board.  A motion 
was made by Director S. Contreras, seconded by Director A. Nguyen, to adopt Resolution No. 
2024-19 as presented at the meeting.  The motion was approved by the following 5-0 roll call 
vote: 
 
AYES:  A. Nguyen, M. Nguyen, T. Diep, S. Contreras, and C. Nguyen 
NAYS:  None 
ABSTAIN:  None  
ABSENT:  None 

       
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS: 
 

A. CalPERS Reports Preliminary 9.3% Investment Return for 2023-24 FY 
 
Received and File. 

 
BOARD CONCERNS AND COMMENTS 
The Directors thanked staff. 
 
GM/STAFF CONCERNS AND COMMENT 
GM R. Housley gave an update on the vacant Director of Finance/HR position. 
 
GENERAL COUNSEL CONCERNS AND COMMENTS - None 
 
With the consent of the full Board, General Counsel, J. Eggart convened the meeting into closed session 
at 6:01 P.M. for consideration for the following matter identified on the Agenda pursuant to applicable 
law. 
 
CLOSED SESSION  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CLOSED SESSION: During the course of conducting the business set forth on this agenda as a regular meeting of the Board, the 
Chair may convene the Board in closed session to consider matters of pending real estate negotiations, pending or potential litigation, 
or personnel matters, pursuant to Government Code Sections 54956.8, 54956.9, 54957 or 54957.6, as noted. 
 
Reports relating to (a) purchase and sale of property; (b) matters of pending or potential litigation; (c) employment actions or 
negotiations with employee representatives; or which are exempt from public disclosure under the California Public Records Act, 
may be reviewed by the Board during a permitted closed session and are not available for public inspection. At such time as the 
Board takes final action on any of these subjects, the minutes will reflect all required disclosures of information. 
 



 
 
 
Board of Directors                         Minutes of Regular Meeting                       Tuesday, August 6, 2024 
 

    Page 5 of 5 
 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS (Government Code Section 54957.6)   
Title: Agency Designated Representatives: GM Robert Housley, Labor Counsel Joseph Larsen  
Employee Organization: American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees, 
LOCAL 1734-01 

 
President M. Nguyen reconvened the open session portion of the meeting at 6:49 P.M. 
 
President M. Nguyen reported that the Board had met in closed session as identified on Agenda Item 
14A, and that no reportable action had been taken.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
President M. Nguyen adjourned the meeting at 6:49 P.M. to the next Board Meeting to be held at the 
District on Tuesday, August 20, 2024, at 5:30 P.M. 
 
 
 
__________________________  
Andrew Nguyen, Secretary     



Page 1 of 1 
 

AGENDA ITEM 7A 
 
Date:  August 20, 2024 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:   Robert Housley, General Manager 
 
Prepared by: Mariana Sanchez, Accountant 
 
Subject: Receive and File the Register of Demands in the Amount of $786,759.04 
             
BACKGROUND 
The laws of the State of California governing Special Districts provide that the Midway City 
Sanitary District Board of Directors shall review for approval all payments made by the District. 
 
A Register of Demands is provided at each regular Midway City Sanitary District Board Meeting 
describing each payment made or to be made by the district during the specified period. The report 
is designed to communicate fiscal activity based on adopted and approved budget appropriations. 
 
The Treasurer has duly reviewed the demands on the attached register. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The total value of demand for this period is $786,759.04. This includes expenses, payroll, and 
payroll-related disbursements. 
 
Sufficient funds are available to process all payments. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors review and file the attached Register of Demands. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Disbursement Details for August 20, 2024 



Type Num Date Name Memo Paid Amount
Check 15915 07/30/2024 Larson Lighting and Audio, Inc.

Bill LLA0561 07/17/2024

Break room audio equipment and 

installation 3,574.66

Bill LLA0566 07/29/2024

Board Room AV Equipment and 

Installation Sales tax rate adjustment 313.40

3,888.06

Check 15916 08/02/2024 Albert Luu Refund of Overpayment

Bill Permit# 7477 07/26/2024 Permit #7477 Refund Overpayment 59.93

59.93

Check 15917 08/02/2024 City of Westminster-Water Billing

Bill 541-0698-00 072024 07/23/2024 District offices 05/21/24 - 7/15/24 143.05

Bill 541-0702-01 072024 07/23/2024 Wash Rack 05/21/24 - 07/15/24 108.66

251.71

Check 15918 08/02/2024 Clean Energy

Bill CEW12703887 06/30/2024 CNG Station Service 06/16/24 196.85

Bill CEW12703179 07/29/2024 Monthly Maint CNG Station July-2024 1,957.16

2,154.01

Check 15919 08/02/2024 CR Transfer, Inc.

Bill 45782 06/30/2024 Tonnage Fees June-24 (1923.62) 121,764.09

Bill 45816 06/30/2024 Tonnage Fees June-2024 (843.12) 88,309.18

210,073.27

Check 15920 08/02/2024 CRC Cloud

Bill 2103084 07/29/2024

New Server: HPE ProLiant DL360 Xaon 

4509Y CPU w/ Drives (7) 12,753.94

Bill 2103085 07/29/2024

HP Elite Mini 800 G9 Desktop PC 

8G9W4UA#ABA-Backup Console 1,745.58

Bill 2103086 07/29/2024

HP Elite Mini 800 G9 Desktop PC 

88U16UA#ABA-Sergio 1,396.49

Bill 2103087 07/29/2024

HP Elite Mini 800 G9 Desktop PC 

88UA16A#ABA-Shannon 1,396.49

Bill 2103088 07/29/2024

HP Elite Mini 800 G9 Desktop PC 

88U16UA#ABA-Randy 1,396.49

Bill 2103089 07/29/2024

HP Elite Mini 800 G9 Desktop PC 

88U16UA#ABA-Leanne 1,396.49

Bill 2103091 07/30/2024

HP Elite Mini 800 G9 Desktop PC 

88U16UA#ABA-Raul 1,396.49

Bill 2103080 08/01/2024 Maintenance & Support  Aug-2024 2,505.00

23,986.97

Check 15921 08/02/2024 Cummins Pacific LLC

Bill X4-50908 06/30/2024 Engine Repairs NG-13 1,565.78

Bill X4-50982 07/23/2024

Kit, Spark Plug (6), Extension, Ignition 

Coil (4), Housing, Breather (1), Seal, O 

Ring (8), Tube... 1,451.24

3,017.02

Check 15922 08/02/2024 Daniels Tire Service

Bill 200511165 07/23/2024 Recap Tires (5) 1,195.21

Bill 200511573 07/26/2024 Recap Tires (4) 2,515.84
Recap Tires (2)  NG-16 1,257.89

4,968.94

Check 15923 08/02/2024 Dtntech 85th Anniversary Mailers & Invites

Bill 19180 08/01/2024

85th Anniversary Mailers (32,157) and 

Invitations (150) 21,895.43

21,895.43

Check 15924 08/02/2024 Empire Pipe Cleaning and Equipment, Inc.

CCTV Video Inspection & Cleaning 

Project

Bill 12598 06/28/2024

Cleaning/CCRC Inspection 8" Grafity 

Sewer Mains (106993.10 LF) 153,000.13

Cleaning/CCRC Inspection 10" Grafity 

Sewer Mains (6814.00 LF) 11,924.50

Cleaning/CCRC Inspection 12" Gravity 

Sewer Mains (12156.40 LF) 25,163.75

Cleaning/CCRC Inspection 15" Gravity 

Sewer Mains (2224.20 LF) 5,427.05

Cleaning/CCRC Inspection 18" Gravity 

Sewer Mains (998.00 LF) 3,043.90
Inspection Manholes (342) 59,850.00

258,409.33

Check 15925 08/02/2024 Environmental Outsource, Inc July-2024

Bill 15733 07/30/2024 Forklift Safety Training 07/30/24 65.00

Midway City Sanitary District

Accounts Payable Expenditures, Payments, Payroll, and ACH Payment(s) Report 

Prepared for Board Meeting held on August 20, 2024

Page 1 of 4



Type Num Date Name Memo Paid Amount
Forklift Safety Training 07/30/24 260.00

Forklift Safety Training 07/30/24 195.00
Forklift Safety Training 07/30/24 130.00

650.00

Check 15926 08/02/2024 Frontier Communications Acct # 209-188-5155-071808-5

Bill MCSD 07/19/2024 07/19/2024 (714)903-1863 Willow Jun-2024 187.89

(714)903-6154 Westminster Jun-2024 187.89

(714)903-6274 Hammon Jun-2024 187.89
(714)897-5136 District Offices Jun-

2024 100.22

663.89

Check 15927 08/02/2024 HB Staffing/Cathyjon Enterprises, Inc.

Bill 4423848 07/18/2024

Engineering Asisstant (32.0) 07/08/24-

07/12/24 1,261.44

Project Manager (40.0) 07/08/24-

07/12/24 1,892.40

Project Manager mileage 07/08/24-

07/12/24 10.65

Bill 4427678 07/25/2024

Engineering Asisstant (32.0) 07/15/24-

07/19/24 1,261.44

Project Manager (40.0) 07/15/24-

07/19/24 1,892.40
Project Manager OT (8) 07/20/24 567.76

6,886.09

Check 15928 08/02/2024 Hossein Ebrahimi Reimb for CWEA Grade 2 Exam Fee

Bill CWEA Test Reimb 07/30/2024 CWEA Grade 2 Exam Fee 07/29/2024 207.00

207.00

Check 15929 08/02/2024 Joseph Ngu Truong Refund - Overpayment

Bill Refund 08/01/2024

Trash/Sewer Refund FY23-24 

Overpayment-14662 Davis St. WM 

APN# 09648304 592.20

592.20

Check 15930 08/02/2024 Los Angeles Truck Centers, LLC

Bill XA220584011:01 07/25/2024 CCC Mirror (2) 216.81

Bill XA220584004:01 07/25/2024 Battle Motors Mirror (1) 736.10

952.91

Check 15931 08/02/2024 Motion and Flow Control Products, Inc. PO # 28592 ID#176382

Bill 9195248 07/29/2024

Parker Female JIC 45 (5), Parker GC -8 

3000psi ISO 18752 (400 ft) 2,474.67

2,474.67

Check 15932 08/02/2024 Orange County Treasurer-Tax Collector WEROC/Emergency Radio

Bill STCS002484 07/25/2024

WEROC Emergency Radio 07/01/2024-

09/30/2024 147.25

147.25

Check 15933 08/02/2024 PSI PO# Nicolas Castro, Ticket# 16139

Bill 45968 07/26/2024

Steam washer Landa VHG4-22024B-

NG SN #11092290000003 12,850.53

12,850.53

Check 15934 08/02/2024 Standard Insurance Company Life Policy # 00 141873  0003

Bill 001417830003 08/2024 08/01/2024 August - 2024 630.08

August - 2024 196.32

August - 2024 238.96

August - 2024 447.92
August - 2024 96.00

1,609.28

Check 15935 08/02/2024 Underground Service Alert MCSDDIST

Bill 720240439 07/31/2024 Underground Dig Alerts July-2024 (13) 34.05

34.05

Check 15936 08/02/2024 UniFirst Corporation

Bill 2190207539 07/26/2024 July - 2024 216.08

Bill 2190207540 07/26/2024 July - 2024 121.40

Bill 2190207541 07/26/2024 July - 2024 69.66

Bill 2190207542 07/26/2024 July - 2024 16.23

423.37

Check 15937 08/02/2024 Volvo Construction Equipment & Services Customer No. BP0004344

Bill EQ0016832-1 07/29/2024 Tax Difference 8.75% to 9.25% 173.14

173.14

Page 2 of 4



Type Num Date Name Memo Paid Amount

Check Total $556,369.05
ACH Payment FY25M1007 07/20/2024 Paychex Acct # Y4807254

Bill 5838845 07/05/2024 Time & Attendance July 2024 395.13

395.13

ACH Payment FY25M1006 07/25/2024 WEX Health Inc Customer ID 45927

Bill 0001983541-IN 06/30/2024 Monthly HRA  Admin Fee June 2024 30.00

Monthly HRA  Admin Fee June - 2024 48.00

78.00

ACH Payment 1002692309 07/26/2024 CalPERS-Retirement 6882866561

Bill 07/08/24 - 07/21/24 07/21/2024 Earned Period 07/08/24 - 07/21/24 1,795.32

Earned Period 07/08/24 - 07/21/24 3,241.64

Earned Period 07/08/24 - 07/21/24 3,539.97

Earned Period 07/08/24 - 07/21/24 1,314.41

9,891.34

ACH Payment 1002692310 07/26/2024 CalPERS-Retirement 6882866561

Bill 07/08/24 - 07/21/24 07/21/2024 Earned Period 07/08/24 - 07/21/24 1,684.54

Earned Period 07/08/24 - 07/21/24 3,041.60

Earned Period 07/08/24 - 07/21/24 3,321.53

Earned Period 07/08/24 - 07/21/24 1,233.29

9,280.96

ACH Payment 1002692311 07/26/2024 CalPERS-Retirement 6882866561

Bill 07/08/24 - 07/21/24 07/21/2024 Earned Period 07/08/24 - 07/21/24 127.60

Earned Period 07/08/24 - 07/21/24 230.39

Earned Period 07/08/24 - 07/21/24 251.59

Earned Period 07/08/24 - 07/21/24 93.42

703.00

ACH Payment 1002695437 07/29/2024 CalPERS - Health Benefits 6882866561

Bill 17613064 08/01/2024 2024_08 10,123.30

2024_08 25,905.23

2024_08 15,462.74

2024_08 7,807.66

2024_08 3,000.44

2024_08 6,024.72

2024_08 7,247.90

2024_08 448.15

76,020.14

ACH Payment 1002695439 07/29/2024 CalPERS - Health Benefits 6882866561

Bill 17613066 08/01/2024 2024_08 7,030.26

7,030.26

ACH Payment FY25M1011 08/01/2024 US Bank Corporate Payment System Acct # 4246 0445 5568 5498

Bill 42460445556854980724 07/22/2024 CAL-Card Expenses July-2024 27,166.36

27,166.36

ACH Payments Total $130,565.19

Payroll 08/02/2024 Board Payroll 8,341.33

Payroll 08/07/2024 Employee Payroll 91,483.47

Payroll Total $99,824.80

Total Disbursements $786,759.04

Page 3 of 4



Type Num Date Name Memo Paid Amount

Transfers

Transfer 08/02/2024 Funds Transfer LAIF to US Bank Chk
Funds Transfer LAIF to US Bank Chk 500,000.00

500,000.00

Transfers Total $500,000.00

Page 4 of 4

































Page 1 of 2 
 

AGENDA ITEM 7C 
 
Date:  August 20, 2024 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:   Robert Housley, General Manager 
 
Prepared by: Robert Housley, General Manager 
 
Subject: Approve a $1,000 Economic Suggestion Award to Lead Fleet Maintenance 

Mechanic, Raul Martinez for Making an Economic Suggestion that Reduced the 
Cost and Increased Operational Efficiency for the Replacement of the Firewall 
Protection in the Solid Waste Department’s Trucks, Saving the District $26,000 

             
BACKGROUND 
Pursuant to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between The Midway City Sanitary 
District (District) and the American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees, AFL-
CIO Local 1734-01 (hereinafter called Union), the Board of Directors, to encourage and promote 
economic suggestions that may result in the savings to the District, set as District policy an 
economic suggestion awards program.   
 
DISCUSSION 
Lead Fleet Maintenance Mechanic, Raul Martinez investigated, navigated, and negotiated 
favorable terms for the District to purchase and replace the firewall protection of the District’s 
solid waste trucks, directly from the manufacturer, thereby cutting out the middleman and saving 
the District $26,000 in additional operational costs.  Additionally, the District was able to acquire 
the firewall protection quicker and more efficiently, where it would have been more costly and 
taken much more time and logistics by going through the distributor. Additionally, the turn around 
time to take the truck a distributor instead of doing the repairs in-house would have extended the 
time that the truck would be put out of service, thereby having an adverse impact on daily 
operations.  
 
Pursuant to Article 15 of the MOU, the Board of Directors have previously evaluated the 
application of this effort to improve efficiencies and costs.  It has been the past practice of the 
Board to award a monetary economy suggestion award, to reflect its gratitude and appreciation 
from the District to the employee for their diligence of finding financial savings to the District.  
 
The cost to replace the firewall protection under the old method is estimated to be over $40,000 at 
a minimum. It is because of Mr. Martinez’s awareness of the situation and diligence, that not only 
did he save the district funds, but he was also able to make the process quicker and more efficient.  
Because of this, Management recommends this very important recognition and economic 
suggestion award to Mr. Martinez.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The fiscal impact is $1,000. 



Page 2 of 2 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors approve a $1,000 economic suggestion award to 
Lead Fleet Mechanic, Raul Martinez for making an economic suggestion that reduced the cost and 
increased operational efficiency for replacement of the firewall protection in the solid waste 
departments trucks, saving the District $26,000.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
None.  



Page 1 of 3 
 

AGENDA ITEM 7D 
 
Date:  August 20, 2024  
 
To:  Board of Directors  
 
From:   Robert Housley, General Manager  
 
Prepared by: Milo Ebrahimi, P.E., District Engineer  
 
Subject: Receive and File the Engineer Report for July 2024  
 
BACKGROUND  
District Engineer prepares a monthly report for the Board of Directors to inform about engineering 
and engineering related activities. This report includes monthly progress of District projects, 
reviewed plans, sewer department projects and activities, trainings and meetings, preventive 
maintenances and repairs of the district assets, and more.  
 
DISCUSSION  
1. District Building and Solar Carport Project by Woodcliff  

1.1. The Contractor has finished all the punch list items. The project is accepted by the Board 
of Director on August 6, 2024.  

 
2. Plans Reviewed  

2.1. Sewer permits (this month): 26.  
2.2. Sewer permits (this fiscal year end): 26.  
2.3. Development projects (trash enclosures and/or sewer lines): 7.  
 

3. Westminster Mall project  
3.1. The District received the improvement plans and other related documents for the 3rd 

review from the City planning department. The District Engineer provided comments on 
the provided documents.  

 
4. Sewer department projects  

4.1. Sewer System Master Plan (SSMP) Project by AKM  
4.1.1. SSMP is in progress. There is a monthly meeting with AKM about progress of 

SSMP and SSMP Audit.  
4.1.2. AKM will finish in about 5 months. A few months’ delay is due to Amendment No. 

2, which was approved by the Board on March 19, 2024, to the original agreement 
with AKM. GPS survey of manholes is performed for engineering analysis and 
Hydraulic Model. AKM is checking the surveying data.   

4.1.3. AKM worked on Preparation and Development of Project Management Plans (task 
11 of the project).  



Page 2 of 3 
 

4.1.4. AKM worked on Addendum No. 2 line item which is Sewer GIS, Survey of 
Manholes, and Hydraulic Model Update (task 12 of the project).  
 

4.2. SSMP Audit by AKM 
4.2.1. SSMP Audit was approved by the by Board on June 4, 2024, as an Amendment 3 

to AKM agreement.  
4.2.2. The District provided all the requested items to AKM for the Audit.  
4.2.3. The Audit Report is due within six months after the end of the required 3-year audit 

period which was May 2, 2024.  
4.2.4. AKM worked on SSMP Goals and Introduction (task 1 of the project).  

 
4.3. Sewer System Cleaning and CCTV Project By Empire Pipe Cleaning & Equipment  

4.3.1. The contractor has finished 67 percent of the project so far.  
4.3.2. Contractor will finish in about 5 months.  
4.3.3. District Engineer will collaborate with Contractor and AKM to link the CCTV 

inspection report with GIS in a new software application.  
 

4.4. Manholes at Westminster Boulevard and Springdale Street Siphon Project by AKM  
4.4.1. There is a blocked and possibly damaged siphon at the intersection of Westminster 

Blvd and Springdale St.  
4.4.2. District is working with AKM to prepare an emergency construction repair plans 

and specs for construction of two manholes to restore the sewer flow. The project 
is still in the design phase.  

 
5. Sewer Department Activities  

5.1. Sewer System Issue 
5.1.1.Two pieces of damaged metal sleeves were found in sewer line in Goldenwest St, 

from Sprous St to Homer St (MH23020 to MH23026), in Westminster, CA.  
5.1.2.After receiving quotes, the District hired a contractor for removal and then CCTV 

of the section of the line for further actions if needed. The work will be scheduled 
soon.  

5.2. There was not any new sewer emergency case this month.  
5.3. There was not any sewer system overflow this month.  
5.4. 73 hotspot locations were cleaned this month.  
5.5. About 24 hotspot locations were checked weekly.  
5.6. About 51,000 linear feet (9.7 miles) of sewer line was cleaned on the east and west side.  

 
6. Trainings and Meetings (not project related)  

6.1. District Engineer and the sewer crew attended the monthly Sewer Department Meeting at 
the District.  



Page 3 of 3 
 

6.2. District Engineer attended monthly meetings with District Engineer of Costa Mesa 
Sanitary District.  

6.3. Engineering Technician attended Development Review Team (DRT) meetings at the City 
of Westminster.  

6.4. District Engineer, Director of Services and Program Development, and Director of 
Operations/Safety attended District Annual Conference Call with CalRecycle.  

6.5. District Engineer and staff attended the District’s Compost Event.  
 
7. Preventive Maintenances (PM) and Repairs  

7.1. Clean Energy performed the monthly PM services on the CNG station at the yard.  
7.2. Clean Energy performed a site visit and checked the equipment due to interrupted 

communication with the CNG station.  
7.3. A repair is needed on the portable generator in the yard. The portable generator is still not 

operational due to more issues. The District bought a new portable generator.  
 
8. Regulation and Reporting  

 
8.1. California Air Resources Board (CARB) 

8.1.1. Low Carbon Fuel System (LCFS): quarterly report submitted to the board.  
 

8.2. California Water Resources Control Board (CWRCB) 
8.2.1. California Integrated Water Quality System (CIWQS): monthly report submitted to 

the board.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
Informational report only.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION  
Staff recommend that the Board of Directors approve and file the Engineer Report.  





                               Page 2 of 2 
 

FISCAL IMPACT  
The total cost of purchasing and outfitting a new 2024 Ford F-150 Lightning 4x4 Supercrew 
electric pickup truck is estimated not to exceed $90,000. This expenditure is justified by the critical 
need to replace the inoperable G-2 truck and the long-term cost savings associated with electric 
vehicles, such as reduced fuel and maintenance costs. Funds for this purchase are available in the 
current fiscal year's budget under the vehicle replacement fund. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors approve the request to authorize the General 
Manager to negotiate for and purchase one 2024 Ford F-150 Lightning 4x4 Supercrew electric 
pickup truck at a total cost not exceeding $90,000 and authorize the General Manager to execute 
all necessary documents for said purchase. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Ford of Long Beach 
2. Fritts Ford    
3. Cerritos Ford 
4. Huntington Beach Ford 





















Page 1 of 1 
 

AGENDA ITEM 9A 
 
Date:  August 20, 2024 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:   Robert Housley, General Manager 
 
Prepared by: Ashley Davies, Director of Services and Program Development 
 
Subject: Consider Sponsorship of the City of Westminster’s Fall Festival 
             
BACKGROUND 
In 2022, the Midway City Sanitary District (District) approved a $250 Bronze Level sponsorship 
to the City of Westminster’s Fall Festival. In 2023, the District again sponsored this event with a 
$1,000 Silver Level sponsorship and also provided in-kind services by providing cardboard trash 
boxes with liners, estimated at about $1,000. 
 
This year, the City of Westminster’s Fall Festival will take place over an entire weekend, 
Thursday-Sunday, September 26th – September 29th at the Westminster Civic Center. Exciting 
features have been lined up to make the festival an unforgettable experience for attendees of all 
ages, such as a vibrant carnival with thrilling rides, games, and a variety of delectable food and 
beverages from local food vendors. The festival will also feature live entertainment that will create 
an atmosphere of fun and excitement.  
 
DISCUSSION 
The City of Westminster is looking for fiscal and product sponsorships for the 2024 Fall Festival. 
Sponsoring the event supports the District’s mission by providing additional exposure and 
recognition of the District and its services within the community. 
 
A copy of the City of Westminster’s Fall Festival Sponsorship Package is attached. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Fiscal sponsorship opportunities range from $500 - $10,000 (sponsorship package is attached).  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors consider sponsorship of the City of Westminster’s 
Fall Festival and provide direction on fiscal sponsorship amount.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. City of Westminster Fall Festival Sponsorship Package 
 



























CITY OF WESTMINSTER PARTICIPANT AGREEMENT AND WAIVER AND RELEASE OF LIABILITY

I, ____________________________ (Full legal name), desire to participate in Fall Festival
2024, (the “Activity”). 
In consideration for my participation in the Activity, I agree as follows:
1. Assumption of Risk. I fully understand and agree that: (a) recreational and fitness activities and
use of City facilities (cumulatively “recreational activities”) have inherent risks, dangers, and hazards
and such exists in my use, and/or my minor child(ren)’s use, of any equipment and my participation in
these activities; (b) my participation, and/or my minor child(ren)’s participation, in such activities
and/or use of such equipment may result in injury or illness including, but not limited to bodily injury,
communicable disease, strains, fractures, partial and/or total paralysis, death, or other ailments that
could cause serious disability; (c) City facilities are open and generally accessible to members of
the public; (d) my and/or my minor child(ren)’s and/or other users access to City facilities and/or
placement, storage or accessing of property left in City facilities puts such property at a risk of
damage, destruction, loss, theft, fire or other casualty; (e) these risks and dangers may be caused by
the negligence of the representatives, employees, or volunteers of the City of Westminster, the
negligence of the participants, the negligence of others, accidents, breaches of contract, or other
causes; (f) my and/or my minor child(ren)’s participation in such activities poses an inherent risk of
exposure to COVID-19 and/or other communicable diseases, (e.g., RSV), which can lead to severe
illness, prolonged hospitalization, disability and death; and (g) by my participation, and/or my
minor child(ren)’s participation, in recreational activities and/or use of equipment, I hereby
acknowledge that I am participating of my own free will in the activity and therefore agree to
assume all risks and dangers and all responsibility for any losses and/or damages whether caused in
whole or in part by the negligence or conduct of the representatives, employees, or volunteers of the
City of Westminster.
2. Medical Release. I authorize the City of Westminster to provide or cause to be provided such
medical treatment to me or my minor child(ren) as may be necessary or appropriate if any injury
occurs while I or my child(ren) are participating in the Activity. I further agree to pay any costs
incurred as a result of such treatment.
3. Indemnification. In consideration for being permitted to participate in the Activity, I hereby
agree, for myself, my heirs, administrators, executors and assigns, that I shall indemnify, defend, and
hold harmless Community Services & Recreation Department, the City, and their elected officials,
officers, agents, employees, and volunteers, from any and all claims, demands, actions, or suits arising
out of or in connection with my participation in the Activity.
4. Waiver and Release of Liability. As lawful consideration for permission to enter City property
and/or City facilities for any purpose, including but not limited to observation, use of facilities or
equipment, leaving or storage of property, or participating any way, I, and my children, agree to be
legally bound for myself and my heirs, personal representatives, next of kin, and anyone who might
make a claim on my behalf, hereby waive, release, and discharge the Westminster Community
Services Department, the City of Westminster, and their elected officials, officers, agents, employees,
and volunteers from any and all claims for damages and/or liability, whether caused by any active
or passive negligent act or omission of the Community Services Department or the City of
Westminster, or their elected officials, officers, agents, employees, and/or volunteers, or otherwise
related to my participation and promise not to sue the Community Services Department, the City of
Westminster, or their elected officials, officers, agents, employees, and/or volunteers for any
damages I or my minor children incur in connection with the Activity. This release and waiver extends
to all claims of every kind or nature whatsoever, foreseen or unforeseen, known or unknown, including
any claims or liability arising from the active negligence of the City, unless otherwise prohibited by
law. The parties to this Agreement understand that this document is not intended to release any
party from any act or omission of “gross negligence,” as that term is used in applicable case law
and/or statutory provision.
I further agree and understand that all of my rights against the City accruing under Section 1542 of
the Civil Code of the State of California are hereby expressly waived to the maximum legal extent.



Section 1542 reads as follows: “A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS THAT THE
CREDITOR OR RELEASING PARTY DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPECT TO EXIST IN HIS OR HER FAVOR AT
THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE RELEASE AND THAT, IF KNOWN BY HIM OR HER, WOULD HAVE
MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS OR HER SETTLEMENT WITH THE DEBTOR OR RELEASED PARTY.”
I agree that this Waiver and Release of Liability is intended to be as broad and inclusive as is
permitted by law.  Any provision found to be invalid or unenforceable by a court shall not affect the
validity or enforceability of any other provision.  
5. Recording of In-Person/Virtual Activities. I understand and agree that in-person and/or virtual
Activity may be recorded for viewing and/or listening by others at a future date. I consent to the
City’s use of audio/video recordings of me during the in-person and/or virtual Activity and that the
City may use audio/video segments or photographic stills of me for any purpose, including, but not
limited to news, advertising, and promotional purposes, without compensation to me. I hereby
release and hold harmless the Community Services & Recreation Department, the City, and their
elected officials, officers, agents, employees, and volunteers, from any claims relating to the use of
my likeness and image.
6. Compliance with All Rules.  I and my minor children agree to obey all policies and procedures
applicable to the Activity and instructions provided by the Community Services & Recreation
Department and/or by City staff and volunteers during my participation in the Activity. I further
understand and agree that Activities/events are interactive and agree to act reasonably and
professionally at all times during my participation.
7. Miscellaneous.  I acknowledge and agree that this Agreement is binding upon my heirs, assigns
and legal representatives. I agree that this Agreement is intended to be as broad and inclusive as is
permitted by California law. I further agree that this Agreement is severable and that if any clause is
found invalid, the balance of the Agreement will remain in effect, valid, and enforceable.

I HAVE READ THE ABOVE WAIVER AND RELEASE OF LIABILITY, ASSUMPTION OF RISK AND INDEMNITY
AGREEMENT AND UNDERSTAND ITS TERMS FULLY. I HAVE GIVEN UP SUBSTANTIAL RIGHTS BY
SIGNING IT AND SIGN FREELY AND VOLUNTARILY OF MY OWN VOLITION.  

Participant’s Full Legal Name: _________________________________________________

Signature: ______________________________________________________________

Date: _________________________________________________________________

If participant is under the age of 18, a parent or legal guardian must read and also sign this
Agreement.

I am the parent or legal guardian of the above-referenced Participant. I have read and I
understand the provision of this document, and I consent to the Participant taking part in the
activities at the Westminster Recreation and Parks facilities, and I fully enter into and agree to the
above Waiver and Release of Liability, Assumption of Risk and Indemnity Agreement. 

Parent/Legal Guardian Name: ________________________________________________

Signature: ______________________________________________________________

Date: _________________________________________________________________



Page 1 of 2 
 

AGENDA ITEM 9B 
 
Date:  August 20, 2024 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:   Robert Housley, General Manager 
 
Prepared by: Robert Housley, General Manager 
 
Subject: Discussion of Exploring Opportunities for the Purchase of Additional Real Property 

to Meet the District’s Future Needs 
              
BACKGROUND 
California Health and Safety Code Section 6414 empowers the District to acquire such real property 
within or outside of the District as in judgment of the Board is necessary or proper to the exercise 
of its powers. One of the strategic goals and priorities set by the Board of Directors for the District 
this year is to explore purchasing real property within the City of Westminster and/or Midway City 
in order to better position the District to meet its future needs.  
 
DISCUSSION 
With the recent completion of the building expansion and solar project, the District’s current 
facilities are presently adequate for its needs.  This will not always be the case, however.  As 
population and infrastructure in the City of Westminster and Midway City grows, the District’s 
operations and footprint will need to grow with it.  Meeting new mandatory State regulatory 
requirements, such as the California Air Resources Board (CARB) Advanced Clean Fleet 
Regulations, may also require additional personnel, equipment, and infrastructure in the future.  
Acquiring additional property within the District would provide opportunities for the future 
expansion of services and infrastructure, in order to better position the District to meet regulatory 
requirements and growth in demand for its services and to continue to provide safe and efficient 
sanitary services to the community.   
 
Securing additional real property in the City of Westminster and/or in Midway City would provide 
the District with greater flexibility in addressing operational growth, as well as the ability to plan 
for future infrastructure projects.  Owning real property will also offer long-term cost savings by 
reducing reliance on leased facilities, ensuring the District can effectively manage its resources 
and respond to increasing service demands and State requirements.  This proactive approach will 
help the District secure the District’s capacity to serve the community efficiently in the years to 
come. Conversely, a reactive approach to property acquisition could result in significantly higher 
costs due to market fluctuations and limited availability of suitable properties.  This could also 
lead to operational disruptions if the District is unable to expand or adapt its facilities in a timely 
manner, ultimately impacting its ability to serve the community efficiently.  
 
With the real possibility of the US Treasury lowering the federal funds rate this year, as soon as 
rates begin to drop, buyers will reenter the real estate market driving existing property prices 
higher. Now is an opportune time to have a discussion.   



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no fiscal impact associated with exploring opportunities to acquire additional real 
property.  Any actual purchase of real property would require subsequent Board action.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors discuss further exploring the purchase of additional 
real property within the District and provide direction to the General Manager.   
 
ATTACHMENTS 
No attachments.  



 

Mailing Address 
P.O. Box 20895 
Fountain Valley, CA  92728 

Meeting Location 
MWDOC/OCWD 
18700 Ward Street 
Fountain Valley, CA  92708 

(714) 963-3058
(714) 964-5930 fax

https://isdoc.net 

Executive Committee 

President  
Hon. Greg Mills 
Serrano Water District  

1st Vice President  
Hon. Bob McVicker 
Municipal Water District of Orange 
County  

2nd Vice President  
Hon. Paul Mesmer 
Surfside Colony Community 
Services District  

3rd Vice President  
Hon. Scott Nelson 
Placentia Library District 

Secretary 
Vacant  

Treasurer 
Hon. Saundra Jacobs  
Santa Margarita Water District  

Immediate Past President 
Hon. Mark Monin  
El Toro Water District  

Staff Administration 

Heather Baez 
Municipal Water District of Orange 
County 

Tina Dubuque 
Municipal Water District of Orange 
County  

August 5, 2024 Call for nominations sent out for the 
2025-2026 Executive Committee 
officer positions. We are seeking 
candidates for President, 1st Vice 
President, 2nd Vice President, 3rd Vice 
President, Secretary, Treasurer, 
Programs, membership and legislation 
to the 1st, 2nd, 3rd VP. 

September 13, 2024 The Nomination period for Executive 
Committee officer positions closed. 
Nominations should include the 
following: 

1. Board Resolution authorizing
your candidacy;

2. Position for which you are
running;

3. What you will bring to ISDOC,
and;

4. Introductory about yourself.
September 16, 2024 Ballots sent out – Via US mail and 

email.  
October 25, 2024 Ballots are due – Via US mail or email 

to Heather Baez:  
P.O. Box 20895  
Fountain Valley, CA 92728 or 
hbaez@mwdoc.com 

October 31, 2024 The names of officers elected 
announced at ISDOC quarterly 
meeting. 

January 1, 2025 Executive Committee officers begin 
new term. 

Independent Special Districts of 
Orange County  

2024 Election Timeline 




